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of Pathological Chemistry, University College
Hospital Medical School, London); C. W. Bellerby,
to investigate the control of the reproductive cycle
by the anterior lobe of the pituitary (Department of
Social Biology, University of London); Dr. T. W.
Birch, to attempt to identify the component parts of
the vitamin B, complex (Nutritional Laboratory,
Cambridge) ; Lilian M. Pickford, to study the part
played by the posterior pituitary gland in the control
of water excretion by the kidneys (Pharmacological
Laboratory, University of Cambridge); Dr. R. J.
Pumphrey, to investigate the sensory physiology of
insects, and the electrical response in the central
nervous system to peripheral stimulation of afferent
nerves (Zoological Laboratory, University of Cam-
bridge) ; T. A. H. Munro, to study the role of in-
heritance in mental disorder (Research Department,
Royal Eastern Counties Institution, Colchester).

AwArps oF RovaL COMMISSION FOR THE
EXHIBITION OF 1851

The Science Scholarships Committee of the Royal
Commission for the Exhibition of 1851 announces
the following appointments for 1936 : Senior Student-
ships : Dr.R.C. L. Bosworth, for research in chemical
physics at Cambridge ; N. A. Burges, for research in
mycology at Cambridge and the Strangeways Re-
search Laboratory, Cambridge ; T. T. Paterson, for
research in geology and prehistory at Cambridge ;
A. F. Rawdon-Smith, for research in physiology and
psychology at Cambridge; Dr. D. Shoenberg, for
research in physics at Cambridge. All the above
awards were made on the recommendation of the
University of Cambridge. Owerseas Scholarships :
D. G. Hurst, for research in physics at the Univer-
sities of California and Cambridge ; J. Marsden, for
research in physical chemistry at the University of
Cambridge; on the recommendation of MeGill
University, Montreal. A. D. Misener, for research in
physics at the University of Oxford or Cambridge ;
S. L. Cohen, for research in biochemistry at the
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Technische Hochschule, Zurich ; on the recommenda-
tion of the University of Toronto. H. C. Corben, for
research in theoretical physics at the University of
Cambridge ; on the recommendation of the Univer-
sity of Melbourne. R. N. Robertson, for research in
botany at the University of Cambridge; on the
recommendation of the University of Sydney. I. E.
Coop, for research in physical chemistry at the
University of Oxford; on the recommendation of
the University of New Zealand. Dr. B. G. Shapiro,
for research in biochemistry at King’s College
Hospital, London ; on the recommendation of the
University of Cape Town. C. O’Kelly, for research
in experimental physics at the University of Cam-
bridge; on the recommendation of the National
University of Ireland.

SALTERS’ INSTITUTE AWARDS

The following awards for 1936-37 have been made
by the Salters’ Institute of Industrial Chemistry and
approved by the Court of the Salters’ Company :
Fellowships renewed to : E. I. Akeroyd, Emmanuel
College, Cambridge ; L. R. Barrett, Lincoln College,
Oxford ; T. K. Hanson, Oriel College, Oxford ; and
C. 8. Windebank, University of London. Fellowships
awarded to: L. M. Baxt, King’s College, London ;
and T. A. Dent, St. Catharine’s College, Cambridge.
The Institute has also awarded 150 grants-in-aid to
young men and women employed in chemical works
to facilitate their further studies,

Mebpical. ReSEaARCH CoOUNCIL AWARDS

The Medical Research Council announces the fol-
lowing awards of travelling fellowships for the
academic year 1936-37: Medical Research Council
fellowships in medical science : J. T. Chesterman,
H. E. Holling. Dorothy Temple Cross Research
fellowships in tuberculosis : A. L. Jacobs, J. Smart,
Dr. B. C. Thompson, V. C. Thompson. Rockefeller
fellowship in psychiatry : Dr. J. H. Quastel.

Excavations at Tell Duweir, Palestine, 1935-36

N exhibition of antiquities from Tell Duweir, the

ancient Lachish, which have been obtained by

the fourth expedition of the Wellcome Archazological

Research Expedition to the Near East in 1935-36,

opened at the Wellcome Research Institute, Euston

Road, London, N.W.I, on July 9 and will remain
open until the end of the month.

The excavations, which again were under the
field direction of Mr. J. L. Starkey, were mainly
directed to completing the clearance of a number of
areas attacked in the course of previous seasons’
work ; but nevertheless, material of considerable
archzological interest and importance was obtained.
An interesting group of bronze objects, much crushed,
came from a quarry on the saddle, which had par-
tially collapsed in ancient times, These objects date
from the early Middle Bronze Age of pre-Hyksos
times, and among them were a kohl stick and mirror,
of which the latter is the first example to be found at
Tell Duweir.

A further clearance of the temple and its super-

imposed reconstructions made it eclear that the
essential plan of all three structures was identiecal,
but that there had been & great expansion in the
second temple. Further evidence was obtained
pointing to the temple having been the seat of the
cult of a triad of deities, of which one was female,
and of affinities with the north. Below the
floor of the second temple, a mass of pottery was
found under the altar bench, which included a Late
Helladic II goblet, dating at about 1450-1400 B.C.
It is of buff paste with cream slip and has a painted
band decoration showing an ivy leaf motif. This,
from the point of view of the archaologist, is one of
the most important finds of the season, as it dates
more or less accurately, and links up a number of
Palestinian finds.

Two sides, measuring eighty-five and seventy-five
feet respectively, of a remarkable opening, apparently
the entrance to a subterranean tunnel, have been
cleared ; and a clearance within the gate has revealed
under the Persian level what was apparently the
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commercial quarter, with shops of a wine or oil
seller, corn chandler and & weaver containing many
of the appurtenances of their trades.

What proved, however, to be the most extensive
and, in some ways, the most important discovery of
the season, was made in the western valley in con-
tinuation of work begun two years ago. Here in
a little-disturbed, small circular tomb lined with
plaster was a collection of objects in number such as is
rarely found in so small a space. From this were
taken two hundred pots, of which fifty-three were
types new to Tell Duweir. The most interesting
was a censer, which in paste and finish recalls
the famous Tell Duweir ewer on which was the
inscription in the early Palestinian alphabetic seript.
This censer has lugs and a flat cover, on the upper side
of which is an inecised decoration with tree or plant
motif in a hatched border, and on the under side a
further example of the early script.

Photo Ralph Richmond Brown

F16. 1. Artificially deformed skull from Tell Duweir. By courtesy of
the Welleome Archsological Research Expedition to the Near East.

The tomb itself, as is shown by a number of
scarabs, dates from 1400 to 1300 B.0. or even 1275 B.C.
Among the objects found are a long-tanged bronze
dagger of Eighteenth Dynasty type, bronze lance and
sporting arrow heads, and faience draughtsmen with
plaques from the gaming board. In an adjacent
larger sepulchral chamber the upper levels were a mass
of rubbish, possibly from the Assyrian occupation, but
the lower levels were composed of a conglomerate of
human skeletal remains, of which the condition sug-
gests that they may have been thrown through a
hole in the roof—the door on the west side was found
still blocked—as salvage from the buildings, when the
city was sacked by Sennacherib in 701 B.c.

This skeletal material will afford valuable evidence
of the physical characters of the early inhabitants of
Palestine, especially as a remnant of the Canaanitish
population may have lingered on at Lachish. Even
more interesting is the fact that, in addition to head
wounds, several of the skulls show a number of
pathological conditions. Some have been artificially
deformed (Fig. 1) and show such elongation in the
occipital region that they resemble in shape the form
of head familiar in the representations of Akhenaton ;
others have been trephined. Of these latter, two
examples, instead of the more usual circular operation,
have had a square section of bone, about an inch
across, removed by sawing cuts, which intersect. This
method, known in the Inca skulls from South America,
is new to the ancient civilization of the Old World.
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Educational Topics and Events

Berrast.—Dr. W. H. McCrea, at present reader
in mathematics in the University of London, has
been appointed to the chair of mathematics in the
Queen’s University,

ReAaDiNG.—Under the will of the late Dr. Alfred
Palmer, who died on May 20 last, the University
has benefited by a valuable bequest of freehold
property. It includes the main buildings of St.
Andrew’s Hall, the largest of the University’s halls
of residence for women students ; a house known as
“Summerbrook™, near the main University site,
which serves as the headquarters for the advisory
officers of the Southern Agricultural Province; two
houses used by Wessex Hall, another of the Univer-
sity’s halls of residence for women students; four
houses adjoining the main University site and used
for general University purposes. The properties, which
have hitherto been held on lease by the University,
have been bequeathed free of duty.

Mr, Gerald E. H. Palmer has been elected a
member of the University Council to fill the vacancy
caused by the death of Dr. Alfred Palmer.

Mr. G. T. H. Kimble has been appointed lecturer

in geography,

SeErFFIELD.—The following appointments have
recently been made : Mr. N. S. Boulton, as lecturer
in civil engineering ; Mr. W. S. Milner (at present
assistant lecturer), to be lecturer in electrical
engineering ; Mr. W. Skyrme Rees, as demonstrator
in anatomy.

“ACADEMIC FREEDOM’’ continues to form the sub-
ject of much anxious discussion in America. The
president of the University of California in a recent
speech on ‘“‘Problems of an American University’
(School and Society, May 30) declared that more
and more in the last year or two his university
has felt, in common with others, the pressure of
special groups, and he drew a lamentable picture of
what the loss of freedom has meant to the universities
of Germany, Italy and Russia. In these countries,
“to-day there are no universities—only names and
shells from which the spirit has departed. In each
of these totalitarian States, universities have become
the agents, the adjuncts, the subordinates of the
State’’. In the same journal in which this speech is
reported appears a letter from the president of the
University of Minnesota referring to the increasing
amount of control the Federal Government is
exercising over the schools of the country, and to the
necessity of keeping the schools and universities free
from dictation by pressure groups and from regi-
mentation by Government agencies. In the preceding
issue, Prof. Thomas Woody, of the University of
Pennsylvania, writes of the ‘‘hysterical efforts to
create loyal citizens by legislative fiat” in recent
attempts to pass laws to keep history ‘‘pure”, and
to regulate and restriect the teaching of science.
“Even more serious in its ultimate possibilities for
the suppression of freedom of the schools and colleges
of the nation is the present obsession with respect
to loyalty oaths for teachers”. He proceeds to
examine at length the grounds on which the require-
ment of such oaths (now prescribed in nineteen
States) has been defended.
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